
 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

TOWN OF PAONIA 
TUESDAY, AUGUST 27, 2019 

REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

WORK SESSION 5:00 PM 

REGULAR MEETING 6:30 PM 
 

 

Work Session Roll Call 
1.  2020 Budget 

 

Roll Call 

Approval of Agenda 

Announcements 

Recognition of Visitors & Guests 

Consent Agenda 
2. Special Event Permit: North Fork Valley Creative Coalition – Edesia – August 30th 

Special Event Permit: Slow Food Western Slope – Edesia – September 21st  

Mayor’s Report 
3. Mayor’s Report 

Staff Reports 
4. Clerk’s Report 

5. Public Works 

6. Police Report 

7. Treasurer’s Report 

8. USDA Loan Refinance 

Disbursements 
9. Disbursements 

Unfinished Business 
10. Public Hearing Continued: South Clark Avenue Major Subdivision  

11. Paonia Teen Center Roof Replacement 

12. Trash Truck Acquisition 

13. Ordinance 2019-05 Business Registration 

14. CHC – North Fork Mancos Master Development Plan – Letter of Protest 

New Business 
15. Bart Eller - Paonia Soil Company Use of Existing Access Agreement 

16. Delta County - Opportunity Zone Funding Request 

Committee Reports 
17. Finance & Personnel 

18. Discussion Regarding Hiring of Interim/Permanent Town Administrator 

19. Delegation of Town Administrator’s Authority to Town Clerk 

20. Public Works-Utilities-Facilities 

21. Governmental Affairs & Public Safety 

22. Space 2 Create 

23. Tree Board 

1



 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

Executive Session 
24. Executive Session - For a conference with  the Town attorney for the purpose of receiving legal advice 

on specific  legal questions under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(b); and for determining  positions relative 

to matters that may be subject to negotiations;  developing strategy for negotiations; and instructing 

negotiators  regarding the employment contract of Mr. Ken Knight under C.R.S.  24-6-402(4)(e)(I).  

 

 

Adjournment 
 

  

2



 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

AS ADOPTED BY: 

TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-10 – Amended May 22, 2018 

 

I. RULES OF PROCEDURE 

 

Section 1.  Schedule of Meetings.  Regular Board of Trustees meetings shall be held on the second and fourth Tuesdays of each 

month, except on legal holidays, or as re-scheduled or amended and posted on the agenda prior to the scheduled meeting. 

 

Section 2.  Officiating Officer.  The meetings of the Board of Trustees shall be conducted by the Mayor or, in the Mayor’s 

absence, the Mayor Pro-Tem.  The Town Clerk or a designee of the Board shall record the minutes of the meetings. 

 

Section 3.  Time of Meetings.  Regular meetings of the Board of Trustees shall begin at 6:30 p.m. or as scheduled and posted on 

the agenda. Board Members shall be called to order by the Mayor.  The meetings shall open with the presiding officer leading 

the Board in the Pledge of Allegiance.  The Town Clerk shall then proceed to call the roll, note the absences and announce 

whether a quorum is present.  Regular Meetings are scheduled for three hours, and shall be adjourned at 9:30 p.m., unless a 

majority of the Board votes in the affirmative to extend the meeting, by a specific amount of time.  

 

Section 4. Schedule of Business.  If a quorum is present, the Board of Trustees shall proceed with the business before it, which 

shall be conducted in the following manner.  Note that all provided times are estimated:  

 

 (a) Roll Call - (5 minutes) 

 (b) Approval of Agenda - (5 minutes) 

 (c) Announcements (5 minutes) 

 (d) Recognition of Visitors and Guests (10 minutes) 

 (e) Consent Agenda including Approval of Prior Meeting Minutes (10 minutes) 

 (f) Mayor’s Report (10 minutes) 

 (g) Staff Reports: (15 minutes) 

  (1) Town Administrator’s Report 

  (2) Public Works Reports  

  (3) Police Report 

  (4) Treasurer Report 

      

 (h) Unfinished Business (45 minutes) 

 (i) New Business (45 minutes) 

 (j) Disbursements (15 minutes) 

 (k) Committee Reports (15 minutes) 

 (l) Adjournment 

 

  * This schedule of business is subject to change and amendment. 

  

Section 5. Priority and Order of Business. Questions relative to the priority of business and order shall be decided by the Mayor 

without debate, subject in all cases to an appeal to the Board of Trustees.  

 

Section 6.  Conduct of Board Members.   Town Board Members shall treat other Board Members and the public in a civil and 

polite manner and shall comply with the Standards of Conduct for Elected Officials of the Town.  Board Members shall address 

Town Staff and the Mayor by his/her title, other Board Members by the title of Trustee or the appropriate honorific (i.e.: Mr., 

Mrs. or Ms.), and members of the public by the appropriate honorific.  Subject to the Mayor’s discretion, Board Members shall 

be limited to speaking two times when debating an item on the agenda.  Making a motion, asking a question or making a 

suggestion are not counted as speaking in a debate.  

 

Section 7. Presentations to the Board.  Items on the agenda presented by individuals, businesses or other organizations shall be 

given up to 5 minutes to make a presentation.  On certain issues, presenters may be given more time, as determined by the 

Mayor and Town Staff.  After the presentation, Trustees shall be given the opportunity to ask questions. 

 

Section 8. Public Comment.  After discussion of an agenda item by the Board of Trustees has concluded, the Mayor shall open 

the floor for comment from members of the public, who shall be allowed the opportunity to comment or ask questions on the 

agenda item.  Each member of the public wishing to address the Town Board shall be recognized by the presiding officer before 

speaking.  Members of the public shall speak from the podium, stating their name, the address of their residence and any group 

they are representing prior to making comment or asking a question.  Comments shall be directed to the Mayor or presiding 

officer, not to an individual Trustee or Town employee.  Comments or questions should be confined to the agenda item or issue(s) 

under discussion.  The speaker should offer factual information and refrain from obscene language and personal attacks. 

3



 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

 

Section 9.  Unacceptable Behavior. Disruptive behavior shall result in expulsion from the meeting.   

 

Section 10.  Posting of Rules of Procedure for Paonia Board of Trustees Meetings. These rules of procedure shall be provided in 

the Town Hall meeting room for each Board of Trustees meeting so that all attendees know how the meeting will be conducted. 

 

II. CONSENT AGENDA 

 

Section 1. Use of Consent Agenda. The Mayor, working with Town Staff, shall place items on the Consent Agenda. By using a 

Consent Agenda, the Board has consented to the consideration of certain items as a group under one motion. Should a Consent 

Agenda be used at a meeting, an appropriate amount of discussion time will be allowed to review any item upon request.  

Section 2. General Guidelines. Items for consent are those which usually do not require discussion or explanation prior to action 

by the Board, are non-controversial and/or similar in content, or are those items which have already been discussed or explained 

and do not require further discussion or explanation. Such agenda items may include ministerial tasks such as, but not limited 

to, approval of previous meeting minutes, approval of staff reports, addressing routine correspondence, approval of liquor 

licenses renewals and approval or extension of other Town licenses. Minor changes in the minutes such as non-material Scribner 

errors may be made without removing the minutes from the Consent Agenda.  Should any Trustee feel there is a material error 

in the minutes, they should request the minutes be removed from the Consent Agenda for Board discussion. 

Section 3. Removal of Item from Consent Agenda. One or more items may be removed from the Consent Agenda by a timely 

request of any Trustee. A request is timely if made prior to the vote on the Consent Agenda. The request does not require a 

second or a vote by the Board. An item removed from the Consent Agenda will then be discussed and acted on separately either 

immediately following the consideration of the Consent Agenda or placed later on the agenda, at the discretion of the Board.  

 

III.  EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

Section 1.  An executive session may only be called at a regular or special Board meeting where official action may be taken by 

the Board, not at a work session of the Board.  To convene an executive session, the Board shall announce to the public in the 

open meeting the topic to be discussed in the executive session, including specific citation to the statute authorizing the Board 

to meet in an executive session and identifying the particular matter to be discussed “in as much detail as possible without 

compromising the purpose for which the executive session is authorized.” In the even the Board plans to discuss more than one 

of the authorized topics in the executive session, each should be announced, cited and described. Following the announcement 

of the intent to convene an executive session, a motion must then be made and seconded.  In order to go into executive session, 

there must be the affirmative vote of two thirds (2/3) of Members of the Board. 

 

Section 2.  During executive session, minutes or notes of the deliberations should not be taken. Since meeting minutes are subject 

to inspection under the Colorado Open Records Act, the keeping of minutes would defeat the private nature of executive 

session. In addition, the deliberations carried out during executive session should not be discussed outside of that session or 

with individuals not participating in the session.  The contexts of an executive session are to remain confidential unless a 

majority of the Trustees vote to disclose the contents of the executive session. 

 

Section 3.  Once the deliberations have taken place in executive session, the Board should reconvene in regular session to take 

any formal action decided upon during the executive session.  If you have questions regarding the wording of the motion or 

whether any other information should be disclosed on the record, it is essential for you to consult with the Town Attorney on 

these matters. 

 

 

IV. SUBJECT TO AMENDMENT 

 

Section 1. Deviations.  The Board may deviate from the procedures set forth in this Resolution, if, in its sole discretion, such 

deviation is necessary under the circumstances. 

Section 2.  Amendment.   The Board may amend these Rules of Procedures Policy from time to time. 

  

4



 

August 20, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Roll Call 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

5



 

August 20, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Roll Call 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

6



 

August 20, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Agenda Approval 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

7



 

August 20, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Announcements 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

8



 

August 20, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Visitors & Guests 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

9

1.



 

August 26, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Special Event Permit: North Fork Valley Creative Coalition – Edesia – 

August 30th 

Special Event Permit: Slow Food Western Slope – Edesia – September 

21st  

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

10

2.



11

2.



12

2.



13

2.



14

2.



15

2.



 

August 20, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Mayor’s Report 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

16

3.



 

August 26, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Clerk’s Report 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

17

4.



 

August 20, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Public Works 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

18

5.



 

August 20, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Police Report 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

19

6.



 

August 20, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Treasurer’s Report 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

20

7.



21

7.



22

7.



23

7.



24

7.



25

7.



26

7.



27

7.



28

7.



29

7.



30

7.



31

7.



32

7.



33

7.



 

August 23, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

USDA Loan Refinance 

Summary:   

Discussion guided by Treasurer Ross King and Finance Officer Cindy Jones. 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

34

8.



35

8.



36

8.



 

August 20, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Disbursements 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

37

9.



38

9.



39

9.



40

9.



41

9.



42

9.



43

9.



44

10.



45

10.



46

10.



47

10.



48

10.



R
A

W

K
C

K
C

WP
R

O
FE

S
S

IO
N

A
L LA

N
D

 S
U

R
V

E
Y

IN
G

, IN
C

.
C

ILM
O
R
E

O
M
P
A
N
Y

406 G
rand A

venue
P

.O
. B

ox 1652
P

aonia, C
olorado  81428

970.527-4200
970.527-4202
w

w
w

.w
ilm

orelandsurveying.com

P
H

O
N

E

FA
X

E
M

A
IL kris@

w
ilm

orelandsurveying.com
J19031 P

LA
T 8 LO

TS
13 M

A
Y

 2019

B
uilding S

etback

W
ater line

E
asem

ent

E
lectric (underground)

E
lectric (overhead)

Fencelines

S
et 3/4" rebar 30" long w

ith 3-1/4"

S
et 5/8" rebar w

ith 2" alum
inum

 cap

S
et 5/8" rebar 30" long w

ith 2" alum
inum

alum
inum

 cap P
LS

38255

as W
itness corner or linepin P

LS
38255

cap P
LS

38255

Found 3-1/4"  cap C
olorado D

epartm
ent

O
f Transportation right-of-w

ay m
onum

ent

Found 3-1/2" brass cap

S
et M

ag N
ail in A

sphalt

Found 5/8" rebar w
ith1 1/2" alum

inum
 cap

R
LS

 1456 or as noted

B
ureau of R

eclam
ation

S
ew

er line

Irrigation line

Fire H
ydrant

W
ater V

alve
W

ater M
eter

S
ew

er M
anhole

49

10.



50

10.



51

10.



52

10.



53

10.



54

10.



55

10.



56

10.



57

10.



58

10.



59

10.



60

10.



61

10.



62

10.



63

10.



64

10.



65

10.



66

10.



67

10.



68

10.



69

10.



70

10.



August 20, 2019

Dear Trustees,
 
     I am writing in regards to the proposed development at the south end of Clark Avenue. I
believe this is a major concern for everyone who resides in the 100 block of Clark Avenue.
The most recent proposal I have seen is for 3 duplex units and one single-family residence.
This many units (a total of 7) will have a huge impact on the neighborhood and I am sure
Planning and Zoning and the Trustees will give this  matter the due dilligence necessary
before making a decision.
     It is a given that Paonia is developing, that more housing is needed and this housing
must go somewhere. I am not opposed to growth and development, but do believe that 7
units is excessive for the land available and the infrastructure that is in place. 
     It is fairly common knowledge that Clark Avenue is in pretty bad shape, we all joke about
the tiniest of showers creating "Lake Clark" but it is a reality. The puddle that develops after
a rainstorm covers half the block. I am aware that the street is slated to be redone, but as of
yet that hasn't happened and the present condition is what I must consider. The added
traffic  from 7 homes would degrade the road even further at a fast pace.
     Parking is also a huge issue. Parking is already minimal on the street. If a car is parked
in front of a mailbox, the mail is typically not delivered, we are already dealing with this -
what will adding 7 additional units mean. I know that the proposal includes a stipulation
regarding parking - that cars belonging to those units will be required to park on site and not
on Clark Avenue. This seems unrealistic to me. How will that be enforced? Does it now
become the residents' responsibility to police the street? 
     If 2 or 3 units were to be added at the end of the street, it seems that these issues could
be null and void. The traffic would increase, but minimally and there would be enough land
to provide on-property parking for the new residents.
      My wish would be that anything the town would approve to be built in this neighborhood
(and actually anywhere) would be something that would be an upgrade, something that
would add to it instead of crippling it. Thank you for taking the time to consider my input.
 
Sincerely,
Spencer Lightfoot
Homeowner

Clark Avenue
Paonia, CO 81428
 
 
 
 

71

10.



 

August 23, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Paonia Teen Center Roof Replacement 

Summary:   

The Ellen Hansen Smith Teen Center property, located in the Paonia town Park, is overseen by 

the Paonia Teen Center Board (PTCB). The roof has been an ongoing issue, with temporary 

repairs made by the public works department a few years ago.   

 

The Town missed the spring submittal deadline for a grant application with DOLA. A grant 

application was submitted for the winter cycle. After discussion with DOLA representative 

Kimberly Bullen, staff requests the Board authorize the re-submittal of the grant, focusing on 

the teen center interior repair and award the attached bid from Clisset, LLC in the amount of 

approximately $48,000. 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

72

11.



Estimate
Date

7/22/2019

Estimate #

334

Customer:
Bob Bushta
Paonia city park

Aaron St. Peter
21755 E Road

Delta, CO 81416
970-901-4677

Terms

TBD

Project

Signature:Estimator: _____________________________________

excellentroofinglimited@outlook.com

Total

We hereby propose to supply the material and labor necessary to complete the project as per
plans and local building codes.

Description
Remove old metal roofing panels
Demo out first 2 rows of existing roof sheathing
Inspect roof to wall connection, Repair as needed
Demo out top 2 rows of sheathing for new roof connection point
Install 9.5 inch I joist roof rafter 24 inches on center to create 4/12 minimum slope
Attach bottom of i joist to wall with a 24 inch overhang on bottom and 12 inch side over hang
Web new i joist to the side of existing Trusses
Sheath roof with 5/8 OSB
Cut in ridge vent
Install metal soffit
Install metal fascia
Install new gutters and down spouts
Clean up and remove project debris
ROOFING

Install  style A drip edge
Install #30 synthetic felt paper with 2 rows of ice and water shield along bottom edge 
Install 29 gauge painted steel roofing panels (Delta Metals INK)
Install Ridge vent
Install ridge cap
Screw roof off every 24 to 30 inches O.C.
Clean up and remove all roofing debris
5 year warranty on workmanship
40 year manufacturers paint warranty

_____________________________________

This bid is good for 60 days.  50% is due prior to ordering any non-returnable material. The remaining balance is
due at time of project completion  By signing the contract below, owner agrees to the proposed estimate and terms
of payment.  In the event of delinquent payments, customer is liable for all legal fees incurred during the
collection process.

$59,500.00

73

11.



Rocky Mountain Roofers & Gutters FOCO
458 South Link Lane , Fort Collins, CO 
Phone: 970-224-1200

Company Representative
John McKenna
Phone: (719) 237-5926
John@rockymountainroofers.com

08/09/2019

Corinne Ferguson
214 Grand Avenue Paonia, CO 81428
(970) 424-6369

Job: Corinne Ferguson

Commercial Section

Qty Unit

26g 3" PBR Panel 6000.00 SF

Gable 2x6 metal 24.00 PC

Eave style A 2x6 metal 17.00 PC

Roll form Ridge Cap 9.00 PC

#10 Woodfast screw 1.5"(250 per box) 40.00 BX

PRB Inside/Outside Clousures 60.00 PC

PBR Ridge Vent Closure 110.00 PC

Remove and install metal roofing 60.00 SQ

$54,826.69

TOTAL $54,826.69

This is an estimate only and is subject to change due to material prices, insurance supplements (if applicable) or other costs accumulated during
production process.

**All credit card transactions will have an additional 3% charge for processing**

Company Authorized Signature Date

Customer Signature Date

Customer Signature Date

74

11.



75

11.



Estimate
Date

7/22/2019

Estimate #

334

Customer:
Bob Bushta
Paonia city park

Aaron St. Peter
21755 E Road

Delta, CO 81416
970-901-4677

Terms

TBD

Project

Signature:Estimator: _____________________________________

excellentroofinglimited@outlook.com

Total

We hereby propose to supply the material and labor necessary to complete the project as per
plans and local building codes.

Description
Remove old metal roofing panels
Demo out first 2 rows of existing roof sheathing
Inspect roof to wall connection, Repair as needed
Demo out top 2 rows of sheathing for new roof connection point
Install 9.5 inch I joist roof rafter 24 inches on center to create 4/12 minimum slope
Attach bottom of i joist to wall with a 24 inch overhang on bottom and 12 inch side over hang
Web new i joist to the side of existing Trusses
Sheath roof with 5/8 OSB
Cut in ridge vent
Install metal soffit
Install metal fascia
Install new gutters and down spouts
Clean up and remove project debris
ROOFING

Install  style A drip edge
Install #30 synthetic felt paper with 2 rows of ice and water shield along bottom edge 
Install 29 gauge painted steel roofing panels (Delta Metals INK)
Install Ridge vent
Install ridge cap
Screw roof off every 24 to 30 inches O.C.
Clean up and remove all roofing debris
5 year warranty on workmanship
40 year manufacturers paint warranty

_____________________________________

This bid is good for 60 days.  50% is due prior to ordering any non-returnable material. The remaining balance is
due at time of project completion  By signing the contract below, owner agrees to the proposed estimate and terms
of payment.  In the event of delinquent payments, customer is liable for all legal fees incurred during the
collection process.

$59,500.00

76

11.



77

11.



 

August 26, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Trash Truck Acquisition 

 

Summary:   

Public Works Director Travis Loberg requests Board approval to allocate reserve funds for the 

acquisition of a new trash truck. 

 

Notes: 

 

Multiple bids were solicited, two received. Upon receipt of the additional bid staff 

recommends approval of the purchase of the estimate submitted by Phoenix. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

78

12.



DATE         PAGE
                                                      07/10/19      1

QUOTE NO.     19-1648   
                                                     ***  QUOTE   ***
 SOLD TO:                               SHIP TO:                                          
      TOWN OF PAONIA                           TOWN OF PAONIA                
      TRAVIS LOBERG                            TRAVIS LOBERG                 
      2ND & POPLAR                             2ND & POPLAR                  
      PAONIA  CO  81428                        PAONIA  CO  81428             

 ===============================================================================
CUSTOMER PO    CUSTOMER NUM    SHIP VIA     SALESMAN  TERMS     CUSTOMER PHONE
QUOTE          16200           DELIVERED       16     NET 10    970-527-4101                  

 ===============================================================================
 Travis,
 We are pleased to submit the following quotation for your consideration.  We
 strive to supply the highest of quality equipment so that your up time is
 maximized.  Please review the quote and let me know if you have any other
 questions.  We look forward to meeting your equipment needs and building a
 product that will last for years to come.  Thank you for your interest.
 Sincerely,

 Jesse McKinley
 307-760-1029
PART NUMBER          DESCRIPTION                     QTY ORD    UOM       PRICE    EXTENDED
 ==================== ==============================  =======    ===  ==========  =========
HEIL DP5000 25YD     *HIGH COMPACTION HD REAR LOAD      1.00     EA   97,050.00   97,050.00
                                                                                   
                      PLEASE SEE ATTACHED SPECIFICATIONS
FREIGHTLINER M2 106  *READY TRUCK CHASSIS               1.00     EA   90,500.00   90,500.00
                                                                                   
                      PLEASE SEE ATTACHED SPECIFICATIONS
KOIS INSTALLED       *LIP & LATCH AND ROLL BAR          1.00     EA    5,935.00    5,935.00
                                                                                   
MUNICIPAL DISCOUNT   *DISCOUNT FOR LOYAL CUSTOMER      -1.00     EA    5,000.00   -5,000.00
                                                                                   

All returned goods must be accompanied by

     invoice and are subject to handling charge after 30 days.

                                                    -------------
             ***NO RETURNS AFTER 90 DAYS***         Sub Total   188,485.00
 A SERVICE CHARGE OF 2% PER MONTH, 24% PER ANNUM WILL BE ADDED TO ANY INVOICE NOT PAID.                                                                       Sales Tax         0.00
 BY THE LAST DAY OF THE MONTH IN WHICH IT IS DUE. WE ARE CONFORMING WITH THE FAIR LABOR                                                                                                                                                  F.E.T.                                                                            0.00
 STANDARTDS ACT OF 1938 AS AMENDED.  NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR TIMELOST DUE TO FIRES, STRIKES                                                                       Freight     4,500.00
 OR CAUSES BEYOND OUR CONTROL.  STENOGRAPHICAL AND CLERICAL  ERRORS SUBJECT TO CORRECTION                                                                            -----------
 THANK YOU FOR ALLOWING US TO QUOTE THESE ITEMS. YOUR COST IS              TOTAL    192,985.00 79

12.



DuraPack® 5000
High-Compaction Rear Loader

80

12.



With over 20,000 built and nearly 30 years of reliability, Heil’s DuraPack 5000 high-compaction 

refuse vehicle has become the mainstay of collection fleets, from small independent haulers to 

the world’s largest municipal fleet.

Engineered to last. The DuraPack 5000 features Heil’s DP body, the only fully welded, interlaced 

subframe in a refuse collection truck. With formed channels for extra strength, high tensile strength 

steel to maximize performance at a minimum weight, and full welding for superior resistance to 

corrosion and cracking, the DuraPack 5000 is a sturdy package with the stamina to absorb years 

of tough hauling.

Outstanding weight distribution. But our engineers still weren’t satisfied. Their search for 

perfection led them to discover a way to create outstanding weight distribution and reduce wear 

on rearward chassis components. They incorporated a high cylinder mount into a compact 

design with a short overhang to maximize forward loading of both the body and the payload.

Easy to operate. The DuraPack 5000 is as functional as it is durable. Operators around 

the world appreciate the convenient one-handed manual packing controls that enable them 

to stop, start, or reverse either the upper panel or the blade at any point in the packing cycle. 

With a simple two-step cycle that reloads in just 6 to 8 seconds, and a complete cycle time 

of 16 to 18 seconds, it gets them through their routes quickly. (Cycle time varies based on 

pump application.) 

To add the DuraPack 5000 to your fleet, contact your local Authorized Heil Dealer. To find 

the Dealer nearest you, visit www.heil.com.

DuraPack® 5000
The unrivaled workhorse of the industry.

81

12.



Heil’s Linkage Packing System is a proven performer. 

It has no rollers, slides, or slide shoes to wear out. 

Smaller cylinders deliver considerably more packing 

power for increased payloads.

Our Service Smart™ design simplifies routine 

maintenance and keeps you away from the shop and 

out servicing your customers — and making money. 

The side door provides easy access for common 

maintenance tasks.

The generous 3.94 cubic yard hopper can 

accommodate large items with ease, and requires 

less cycling on the route.

Our exclusive fully welded, interlaced subframe provides 

exceptional longevity, while resisting abrasion, corrosion, 

and salt damage. The body is constructed of 7- to 

8-gauge high tensile strength steel, while the hopper 

features 5⁄16-inch thick AR400 steel on the floor and 
3⁄16-inch thick AR400 steel on the sides for superior 

strength and durability.

Reliable Real Loader Performance
The DuraPack® 5000 was specifically designed to maximize your time on daily collection routes.

Solid Foundation — The interlaced subframe provides exceptional strength and durability, 

which means your DuraPack 5000 will enjoy a long lifespan.

Time-Saver — The DuraPack 5000 features a flat, abrasion-resistant steel floor, which 

eliminates the messy job of cleaning trash buildup out of dirty troughs.

Frame-Mounted Oil Tank — Filter maintenance is easy with an oil tank that is mounted 

on the frame and includes standard sight gauge and in-cab filter bypass monitors.

Superior Filtration — Our 3-micron filtration system keeps oil cleaner and extends the 

life of hydraulic components. Other manufacturers use 10-micron filtration, which can allow 

particulate matter to damage the hydraulic system.

One-Handed Manual Packing — Convenient one-handed manual controls stop, start, 

or reverse the upper panel or blade at any point in the packing cycle.

Visit www.heil.com to learn more about how  

Heil refuse collection vehicles are  

making a difference around the world.

Durability and Longevity

More Packing Power

Service Smart™ Side Door

High-Capacity Hopper

82

12.



DuraPack® 5000
High-Compaction Rear Loader

© 2014, Hei l  Env i ronmenta l ,  Pr inted in the U.S.A. FORM #SWS-000012-011514

CONTACT YOUR LOCAL DEALER

2030 Hamilton Place Blvd., Suite 200, Chattanooga, TN 37421

Choose your DuPont® finish 
Proven paint process
At Heil, we recognize that a quality paint finish requires a 

quality process and application. We have reviewed and refined 

our paint procedures to fully utilize the optimal characteristics 

of the paint and provide the finish and durability expected 

1. Body surface prep

2. Joint sealer

3. Component powder-coating

4. Undercoating

5. DuPont paint

DuPont is the leader in commercial finishes, and Heil proudly 

uses DuPont primer and paint on all our refuse collection 

vehicles. Our priming and painting processes provide optimal 

adherence, durability, and corrosion resistance.

Count on the Lowest TCO 
Refuse and recycling collection vehicles are our passion, 

and we apply tremendous resources to advance our product 

and service offerings to improve the profitability of your 

business and provide the lowest Total Cost of Ownership and 

the maximum return on your investment. You can be confident 

that choosing Heil equipment brings a long-term partnership 

with the industry leader.

Purchase your Heil unit through NJPA®

National Joint Powers 

Alliance (NJPA) has 

awarded Environmental 

Solutions Group (ESG), 

of which Heil is a part,  

a nationally bid contract for “Solid Waste and Recycling Collection 

Equipment with Related Equipment, Accessories, and Supplies.”

Through the ESG contract (#060612-ESG), NJPA Members 

can purchase any of ESG’s line of refuse and recycling 

equipment, including Heil front-loading, side-loading, and 

rear-loading refuse collection vehicles and roll-off hoists 

directly, without having to create an RFP and send the 

project through a duplicate bid process. By using the existing 

nationally bid contract, Members can receive the products 

they need more quickly and cost effectively.

Best of all, membership in NJPA is free! Qualified agencies 

can join online via the NJPA website at www.njpacoop.org.

To find out more about purchasing Heil equipment via the 

ESG NJPA contract, please contact your local Heil Dealer. 

Rely on experienced local support
When you buy from Heil, you gain the aftermarket support of 

the industry’s strongest network of dealers in North America. 

We stand behind our products, so you get the support you 

need for the life of those products. Our dealers are also 

trained to help you find the best product for your particular 

route needs.

To find the dealer nearest you, visit our website at  

www.heil.com and click on “Dealer Locator.”

Trust Heil Certified OEM 
and aftermarket parts
Heil Certified OEM parts are the most 

reliable replacement parts for Heil refuse collection 

vehicles. They’re made following the exact specifications 

and production processes on the same assembly lines as 

the parts originally installed on the bodies. This means that 

they fit perfectly every time. Heil uses only the highest-quality 

materials for parts that last — minimizing costly downtime. 

For more information on parts, please call 800.528.5308.

Rent a Heil unit from Big Truck Rental
There are many reasons why renting your refuse trucks may 

be the perfect solution compared to purchasing vehicles for 

your fleet. Heil is pleased to partner with Big Truck Rental 

to offer short- and long-term rental options on our most 

popular refuse collection models, including front loaders, 

rear loaders, automated side 

loaders, and roll-off hoists. 

Call your local Heil Dealer 

for more information or visit  

www.bigtruckrental.com.

83

12.



Prepared for:                                                                                                                                       
Mark Watje                                                                                                                                       
CURBTENDER INC                                                                                                                                       
701 Performance Dr                                                                                                                                       
Cedar Falls, IA  50613                                                                                                                                       
Phone: 319-266-1721                                                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                       

                                                                                                                                   

KY3558-59 
25Y PHOENIX CHASSIS 

Prepared by: 
Jeramiah Javens 

Phone: 507-929-0660 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Application Version 10.1.202                                                                                                                                       
Data Version PRL-19M.004                                                                                                                                       
25Y Phoenix Stock                                                                                                                                       
   

 

05/29/2019 10:28 AM 
 

Page 1 of 16 

 

Q U O T A T I O N  

M2 106 CONVENTIONAL CHASSIS   

SET BACK AXLE - TRUCK 

CUM L9 350 HP @ 2000 RPM, 2200 GOV RPM, 1000 
LB/FT @ 1400 RPM 

ALLISON 3000 RDS AUTOMATIC TRANSMISSION WITH 
PTO PROVISION 

MT-44-14X 44,000# R-SERIES TANDEM REAR AXLE 

AIRLINER 46,000# REAR SUSPENSION 

DETROIT DA-F-18.0-5 18,000# FL1 71.0 KPI/3.74 DROP 
SINGLE FRONT AXLE 

18,000# FLAT LEAF FRONT SUSPENSION 

106 INCH BBC FLAT ROOF ALUMINUM CONVENTIONAL 
CAB 

5700MM (224 INCH) WHEELBASE 

7/16X3-9/16X11-1/8 INCH STEEL FRAME 
(11.11MMX282.6MM/0.437X11.13 INCH) 120KSI 

1600MM (63 INCH) REAR FRAME OVERHANG 

 

 PER UNIT TOTAL 

 

TAXES AND FEES     

FEDERAL EXCISE TAX (FET)  $  0      $ 0 

TAXES AND FEES. DOC FEE  $ 150 $ 150 

OTHER CHARGES. FREIGHT  $ 2,710 $ 2,710 

 

TRADE-IN      

TRADE-IN ALLOWANCE $ (0) $ (0) 

COMMENTS:  

PRICE INCLUDES 25Y CURBTENDER PHOENIX BODY, 12,000# REVING WINCH, KICK BAR, LIP AND LATCH 
AND PERKINS CART TIPPER. 

 

APPROVAL:  

Please indicate your acceptance of this quotation by signing below:  

 

Customer: X_______________________________________  Date: ___ / ___ / ___. 

 

VEHICLE PRICE TOTAL # OF UNITS (1) $ 0 $ 0 

EXTENDED WARRANTY  $ 0 $ 0 

DEALER INSTALLED OPTIONS  $ 0 $ 0 

CUSTOMER PRICE BEFORE TAX  $ 173,600 $ 173,600 

      

BALANCE DUE WITH BODY (LOCAL CURRENCY) $ 176,460       $ 176,460 

84

12.



Prepared for:                                                                                                                                       
Mark Watje                                                                                                                                       
CURBTENDER INC                                                                                                                                       
701 Performance Dr                                                                                                                                       
Cedar Falls, IA  50613                                                                                                                                       
Phone: 319-266-1721                                                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                       

                                                                                                                                   

KY3558-59 
25Y PHOENIX CHASSIS 

Prepared by: 
Jeramiah Javens 

Phone: 507-929-0660 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Application Version 10.1.202                                                                                                                                       
Data Version PRL-19M.004                                                                                                                                       
25Y Phoenix Stock                                                                                                                                       
   

 

05/29/2019 10:28 AM 
 

Page 2 of 16 

 

 

Financing that works for you. 

See your local dealer for a competitive quote from Daimler Truck Financial, or 
contact us at Information@dtfoffers.com. 

Daimler Truck Financial offers a variety of finance, lease and insurance solutions to 
fit your business needs. For more information about our products and services, visit 
our website.   

 

85

12.



Prepared for:                                                                                                                                       
Mark Watje                                                                                                                                       
CURBTENDER INC                                                                                                                                       
701 Performance Dr                                                                                                                                       
Cedar Falls, IA  50613                                                                                                                                       
Phone: 319-266-1721                                                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                       

                                                                                                                                   

KY3558-59 
25Y PHOENIX CHASSIS 

Prepared by: 
Jeramiah Javens 

Phone: 507-929-0660 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Application Version 10.1.202                                                                                                                                       
Data Version PRL-19M.004                                                                                                                                       
25Y Phoenix Stock                                                                                                                                       
   

 

05/29/2019 10:28 AM 
 

Page 3 of 16 

 

 

 

 

 

   

S P E C I F I C A T I O N  P R O P O S A L  
 

 

 
 

                                                                                          
Description  

Weight 
Front 

Weight  
Rear  

Price Level 

  M2 PRL-19M (EFF:01/15/19)     

Data Version 

  SPECPRO21 DATA RELEASE VER 004     

Vehicle Configuration 

  M2 106 CONVENTIONAL CHASSIS  5,709 3,503  

  2020 MODEL YEAR SPECIFIED     

  SET BACK AXLE - TRUCK     

  STRAIGHT TRUCK PROVISION     

  LH PRIMARY STEERING LOCATION     

General Service 

  TRUCK CONFIGURATION     

  DOMICILED, USA 50 STATES (INCLUDING 
CALIFORNIA AND CARB OPT-IN STATES)  

   

  REFUSE SERVICE     

  SANITATION BUSINESS SEGMENT     

  DRY BULK COMMODITY     

  TERRAIN/DUTY: 100% (ALL) OF THE TIME, IN 
TRANSIT, IS SPENT ON PAVED ROADS  

   

  MAXIMUM 8% EXPECTED GRADE     

  SMOOTH CONCRETE OR ASPHALT PAVEMENT - 
MOST SEVERE IN-TRANSIT (BETWEEN SITES) 
ROAD SURFACE  

   

  MEDIUM TRUCK WARRANTY     

  EXPECTED FRONT AXLE(S) LOAD :  14000.0 lbs    

  EXPECTED REAR DRIVE AXLE(S) LOAD :  
40000.0 lbs 

   

  EXPECTED GROSS VEHICLE WEIGHT CAPACITY 
:  54000.0 lbs 

   

Truck Service 

  REFUSE, SIDE LOAD OR REAR PACKER BODY - 
DOES NOT UNLOAD IN A LANDFILL  

   

86

12.



Prepared for:                                                                                                                                       
Mark Watje                                                                                                                                       
CURBTENDER INC                                                                                                                                       
701 Performance Dr                                                                                                                                       
Cedar Falls, IA  50613                                                                                                                                       
Phone: 319-266-1721                                                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                       

                                                                                                                                   

KY3558-59 
25Y PHOENIX CHASSIS 

Prepared by: 
Jeramiah Javens 

Phone: 507-929-0660 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Application Version 10.1.202                                                                                                                                       
Data Version PRL-19M.004                                                                                                                                       
25Y Phoenix Stock                                                                                                                                       
   

 

05/29/2019 10:28 AM 
 

Page 4 of 16 

 

 
 

                                                                                          
Description  

Weight 
Front 

Weight  
Rear  

  CURBTENDER INC.     

  EXPECTED BODY/PAYLOAD CG HEIGHT ABOVE 
FRAME "XX" INCHES :  32.0 in 

   

Engine 

  CUM L9 350 HP @ 2000 RPM, 2200 GOV RPM, 
1000 LB/FT @ 1400 RPM  

640 30  

Electronic Parameters 

  70 MPH ROAD SPEED LIMIT     

  CRUISE CONTROL SPEED LIMIT 3 MPH HIGHER 
THAN ROAD SPEED LIMIT  

   

  PTO MODE ENGINE RPM LIMIT - 1400 RPM     

  PTO RPM WITH CRUISE SET SWITCH - 700 RPM     

  PTO RPM WITH CRUISE RESUME SWITCH - 900 
RPM  

   

  PTO MODE CANCEL VEHICLE SPEED - 25 MPH     

  PTO GOVERNOR RAMP RATE - 250 RPM PER 
SECOND  

   

  ONE REMOTE PTO SPEED     

  PTO SPEED 1 SETTING - 1300 RPM     

  ENGINE BRAKE WITH CRUISE CONTROL 
ENABLED AT 2 MPH ABOVE SET SPEED, 1 MPH 
INCREMENT BETWEEN BRAKING LEVELS  

   

  PTO MINIMUM RPM - 700     

  REGEN INHIBIT SPEED THRESHOLD - 5 MPH     

  MAXIMUM ENGINE RPM = 1500 ON VSS FAILURE     

Engine Equipment 

  2016-2019 ONBOARD DIAGNOSTICS/2010 
EPA/CARB/FINAL GHG17 CONFIGURATION  

   

  2008 CARB EMISSION CERTIFICATION - CLEAN 
IDLE (INCLUDES 6X4 INCH LABEL ON LOWER 
FORWARD CORNER OF DRIVER DOOR)  

   

  STANDARD OIL PAN     

  ENGINE MOUNTED OIL CHECK AND FILL     

  FUMOTO DRAIN VALVE(S) ON OIL PAN     

  ONE PIECE VALVE COVER     

  SIDE OF HOOD AIR INTAKE WITH FIREWALL 
MOUNTED DONALDSON AIR CLEANER  

   

  DR 12V 160 AMP 28-SI QUADRAMOUNT PAD 
ALTERNATOR WITH REMOTE BATTERY VOLT 
SENSE  

   

  (2) DTNA GENUINE, FLOODED STARTING, MIN 
2000CCA, 370RC, THREADED STUD BATTERIES  

10   

  BATTERY BOX FRAME MOUNTED     

87

12.



Prepared for:                                                                                                                                       
Mark Watje                                                                                                                                       
CURBTENDER INC                                                                                                                                       
701 Performance Dr                                                                                                                                       
Cedar Falls, IA  50613                                                                                                                                       
Phone: 319-266-1721                                                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                       

                                                                                                                                   

KY3558-59 
25Y PHOENIX CHASSIS 

Prepared by: 
Jeramiah Javens 

Phone: 507-929-0660 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Application Version 10.1.202                                                                                                                                       
Data Version PRL-19M.004                                                                                                                                       
25Y Phoenix Stock                                                                                                                                       
   

 

05/29/2019 10:28 AM 
 

Page 5 of 16 

 

 
 

                                                                                          
Description  

Weight 
Front 

Weight  
Rear  

  STANDARD BATTERY JUMPERS     

  SINGLE BATTERY BOX FRAME MOUNTED LH 
SIDE BACK OF CAB  

   

  WIRE GROUND RETURN FOR BATTERY CABLES 
WITH ADDITIONAL FRAME GROUND RETURN  

   

  NON-POLISHED BATTERY BOX COVER     

  CAB AUXILIARY POWER CABLE  5   

  CUMMINS TURBOCHARGED 18.7 CFM AIR 
COMPRESSOR WITH INTERNAL SAFETY VALVE  

   

  STANDARD MECHANICAL AIR COMPRESSOR 
GOVERNOR  

   

  AIR COMPRESSOR DISCHARGE LINE     

  ELECTRONIC ENGINE INTEGRAL WARNING AND 
DERATE PROTECTION SYSTEM  

   

  CUMMINS EXHAUST BRAKE INTEGRAL WITH 
VARIABLE GEOMETRY TURBO WITH ON/OFF 
DASH SWITCH  

20   

  RH OUTBOARD UNDER STEP MOUNTED 
HORIZONTAL AFTERTREATMENT SYSTEM 
ASSEMBLY WITH RH B-PILLAR MOUNTED 
VERTICAL TAILPIPE  

30 25  

  ENGINE AFTERTREATMENT DEVICE, 
AUTOMATIC OVER THE ROAD REGENERATION 
AND DASH MOUNTED REGENERATION 
REQUEST SWITCH  

   

  10 FOOT 06 INCH (126 INCH+0/-5.9 INCH) 
EXHAUST SYSTEM HEIGHT  

   

  RH CURVED VERTICAL TAILPIPE B-PILLAR 
MOUNTED ROUTED FROM STEP  

   

  6 GALLON DIESEL EXHAUST FLUID TANK     

  100 PERCENT DIESEL EXHAUST FLUID FILL     

  LH MEDIUM DUTY STANDARD DIESEL EXHAUST 
FLUID TANK LOCATION  

   

  STANDARD DIESEL EXHAUST FLUID PUMP 
MOUNTING  

   

  STANDARD DIESEL EXHAUST FLUID TANK CAP     

  STAINLESS STEEL AFTERTREATMENT 
DEVICE/MUFFLER/TAILPIPE SHIELD  

   

  BORG WARNER (KYSOR) REAR AIR ON/OFF 
ENGINE FAN CLUTCH  

   

  AUTOMATIC FAN CONTROL WITHOUT DASH 
SWITCH, NON ENGINE MOUNTED  

   

  CUMMINS SPIN ON FUEL FILTER     

  COMBINATION FULL FLOW/BYPASS OIL FILTER     

  1100 SQUARE INCH ALUMINUM RADIATOR  70   

88

12.



Prepared for:                                                                                                                                       
Mark Watje                                                                                                                                       
CURBTENDER INC                                                                                                                                       
701 Performance Dr                                                                                                                                       
Cedar Falls, IA  50613                                                                                                                                       
Phone: 319-266-1721                                                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                       

                                                                                                                                   

KY3558-59 
25Y PHOENIX CHASSIS 

Prepared by: 
Jeramiah Javens 

Phone: 507-929-0660 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Application Version 10.1.202                                                                                                                                       
Data Version PRL-19M.004                                                                                                                                       
25Y Phoenix Stock                                                                                                                                       
   

 

05/29/2019 10:28 AM 
 

Page 6 of 16 

 

 
 

                                                                                          
Description  

Weight 
Front 

Weight  
Rear  

  ANTIFREEZE TO -34F, OAT (NITRITE AND 
SILICATE FREE) EXTENDED LIFE COOLANT  

   

  GATES BLUE STRIPE COOLANT HOSES OR 
EQUIVALENT  

   

  CONSTANT TENSION HOSE CLAMPS FOR 
COOLANT HOSES  

   

  RADIATOR DRAIN VALVE     

  LOWER RADIATOR GUARD     

  PHILLIPS-TEMRO 1000 WATT/115 VOLT BLOCK 
HEATER  

4   

  CHROME ENGINE HEATER RECEPTACLE 
MOUNTED UNDER LH DOOR  

   

  ALUMINUM FLYWHEEL HOUSING     

  ELECTRIC GRID AIR INTAKE WARMER     

  DELCO 12V 38MT HD STARTER WITH 
INTEGRATED MAGNETIC SWITCH  

   

Transmission 

  ALLISON 3000 RDS AUTOMATIC TRANSMISSION 
WITH PTO PROVISION  

200 60  

Transmission Equipment 

  ALLISON VOCATIONAL PACKAGE 142 - 
AVAILABLE ON 3000/4000 PRODUCT FAMILIES 
WITH VOCATIONAL MODEL RDS  

   

  ALLISON VOCATIONAL RATING FOR REFUSE 
APPLICATIONS AVAILABLE WITH ALL PRODUCT 
FAMILIES  

   

  PRIMARY MODE GEARS, LOWEST GEAR 1, 
START GEAR 1, HIGHEST GEAR 6, AVAILABLE 
FOR 3000/4000 PRODUCT FAMILIES ONLY  

   

  SECONDARY MODE GEARS, LOWEST GEAR 1, 
START GEAR 1, HIGHEST GEAR 6, AVAILABLE 
FOR 3000/4000 PRODUCT FAMILIES ONLY  

   

  S1 PREFORMANCE PRIMARY SHIFT SCHEDULE, 
AVAILABLE FOR 3000/4000 PRODUCT FAMILIES 
ONLY  

   

  S1 PERFORMANCE SECONDARY SHIFT 
SCHEDULE, AVAILABLE FOR 3000/4000 
PRODUCT FAMILIES ONLY  

   

  2200 RPM PRIMARY MODE SHIFT SPEED     

  2200 RPM SECONDARY MODE SHIFT SPEED     

  ENGINE BRAKE RANGE PRESELECT 
RECOMMENDED BY DTNA AND ALLISON, THIS 
DEFINED BY ENGINE AND VOCATIONAL USAGE  

   

89

12.



Prepared for:                                                                                                                                       
Mark Watje                                                                                                                                       
CURBTENDER INC                                                                                                                                       
701 Performance Dr                                                                                                                                       
Cedar Falls, IA  50613                                                                                                                                       
Phone: 319-266-1721                                                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                       

                                                                                                                                   

KY3558-59 
25Y PHOENIX CHASSIS 

Prepared by: 
Jeramiah Javens 

Phone: 507-929-0660 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Application Version 10.1.202                                                                                                                                       
Data Version PRL-19M.004                                                                                                                                       
25Y Phoenix Stock                                                                                                                                       
   

 

05/29/2019 10:28 AM 
 

Page 7 of 16 

 

 
 

                                                                                          
Description  

Weight 
Front 

Weight  
Rear  

  ENGINE BRAKE RANGE ALTERNATE 
PRESELECT RECOMMENDED BY DTNA AND 
ALLISON, THIS DEFINED BY ENGINE AND 
VOCATIONAL USAGE  

   

  FUEL SENSE 2.0 DISABLED - PERFORMANCE - 
TABLE BASED  

   

  DRIVER SWITCH INPUT - DEFAULT - NO 
SWITCHES  

   

  DIRECTION CHANGE ENABLED WITH 
MULTIPLEXED SERVICE BRAKES - ALLISON 5TH 
GEN TRANSMISSIONS  

   

  VEHICLE INTERFACE WIRING CONNECTOR 
WITH PDM AND NO BLUNT CUTS, AT BACK OF 
CAB  

   

  ELECTRONIC TRANSMISSION CUSTOMER 
ACCESS CONNECTOR MOUNTED BACK OF CAB  

   

  FACTORY INSTALLED CHELSEA PTO- 
280GMFJP-B5RF  

   

  PTO MOUNTING, LH SIDE OF MAIN 
TRANSMISSION  

   

  MAGNETIC PLUGS, ENGINE DRAIN, 
TRANSMISSION DRAIN, AXLE(S) FILL AND 
DRAIN  

   

  PUSH BUTTON ELECTRONIC SHIFT CONTROL 
DASH MOUNTED IN RG PANEL WITH NO 
SWITCHES OR GAUGES MOUNTED ABOVE 
SHIFTER  

   

  TRANSMISSION PROGNOSTICS - ENABLED 2013     

  WATER TO OIL TRANSMISSION COOLER, IN 
RADIATOR END TANK  

   

  TRANSMISSION OIL CHECK AND FILL WITH 
CROSSOVER TO CLEAR LH PTO AND DIRECT 
MOUNT PUMP  

   

  SYNTHETIC TRANSMISSION FLUID (TES-295 
COMPLIANT)  

   

Front Axle and Equipment 

  DETROIT DA-F-18.0-5 18,000# FL1 71.0 KPI/3.74 
DROP SINGLE FRONT AXLE  

210   

  MERITOR 16.5X6 Q+ CAST SPIDER CAM FRONT 
BRAKES, DOUBLE ANCHOR, FABRICATED 
SHOES  

10   

  NON-ASBESTOS FRONT BRAKE LINING     

  CONMET CAST IRON FRONT BRAKE DRUMS     

  FRONT BRAKE DUST SHIELDS  5   

  FRONT OIL SEALS     

  VENTED FRONT HUB CAPS WITH WINDOW, 
CENTER AND SIDE PLUGS - OIL  

   

90

12.



Prepared for:                                                                                                                                       
Mark Watje                                                                                                                                       
CURBTENDER INC                                                                                                                                       
701 Performance Dr                                                                                                                                       
Cedar Falls, IA  50613                                                                                                                                       
Phone: 319-266-1721                                                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                       

                                                                                                                                   

KY3558-59 
25Y PHOENIX CHASSIS 

Prepared by: 
Jeramiah Javens 

Phone: 507-929-0660 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Application Version 10.1.202                                                                                                                                       
Data Version PRL-19M.004                                                                                                                                       
25Y Phoenix Stock                                                                                                                                       
   

 

05/29/2019 10:28 AM 
 

Page 8 of 16 

 

 
 

                                                                                          
Description  

Weight 
Front 

Weight  
Rear  

  STANDARD SPINDLE NUTS FOR ALL AXLES     

  BENDIX VERSAJUST AUTOMATIC FRONT SLACK 
ADJUSTERS  

   

  TRW TAS-85 POWER STEERING  40   

  POWER STEERING PUMP     

  2 QUART SEE THROUGH POWER STEERING 
RESERVOIR  

   

  OIL/AIR POWER STEERING COOLER  5   

  SYNTHETIC 75W-90 FRONT AXLE LUBE     

Front Suspension 

  18,000# FLAT LEAF FRONT SUSPENSION  290   

  GRAPHITE BRONZE BUSHINGS WITH SEALS - 
FRONT SUSPENSION  

   

  NO FRONT SHOCK ABSORBERS  -30   

Rear Axle and Equipment 

  MT-44-14X 44,000# R-SERIES TANDEM REAR 
AXLE  

 2,580  

  5.29 REAR AXLE RATIO     

  IRON REAR AXLE CARRIER WITH STANDARD 
AXLE HOUSING  

   

  MXL 17T MERITOR EXTENDED LUBE MAIN 
DRIVELINE WITH HALF ROUND YOKES  

20 20  

  MXL 17T MERITOR EXTENDED LUBE INTERAXLE 
DRIVELINE WITH HALF ROUND YOKES  

   

  DRIVER CONTROLLED TRACTION 
DIFFERENTIAL - BOTH TANDEM REAR AXLES  

 30  

  (1) INTERAXLE LOCK VALVE, (1) DRIVER 
CONTROLLED DIFFERENTIAL LOCK FORWARD-
REAR AND REAR-REAR AXLE VALVE  

   

  BLINKING LAMP WITH EACH INTERAXLE LOCK 
SWITCH, INTERAXLE UNLOCK DEFAULT WITH 
IGNITION OFF  

   

  BLINKING LAMP WITH EACH MODE SWITCH, 
DIFFERENTIAL UNLOCK WITH IGNITION OFF, 
ACTIVE <5 MPH  

   

  MERITOR 16.5X7 Q+ CAST SPIDER CAM REAR 
BRAKES, DOUBLE ANCHOR, FABRICATED 
SHOES  

   

  NON-ASBESTOS REAR BRAKE LINING     

  BRAKE CAMS AND CHAMBERS ON FORWARD 
SIDE OF DRIVE AXLE(S) WITH AUXILIARY 
SUPPORT BRACKETS  

   

  CONMET CAST IRON REAR BRAKE DRUMS     

  REAR BRAKE DUST SHIELDS   10  

91

12.



Prepared for:                                                                                                                                       
Mark Watje                                                                                                                                       
CURBTENDER INC                                                                                                                                       
701 Performance Dr                                                                                                                                       
Cedar Falls, IA  50613                                                                                                                                       
Phone: 319-266-1721                                                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                       

                                                                                                                                   

KY3558-59 
25Y PHOENIX CHASSIS 

Prepared by: 
Jeramiah Javens 

Phone: 507-929-0660 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Application Version 10.1.202                                                                                                                                       
Data Version PRL-19M.004                                                                                                                                       
25Y Phoenix Stock                                                                                                                                       
   

 

05/29/2019 10:28 AM 
 

Page 9 of 16 

 

 
 

                                                                                          
Description  

Weight 
Front 

Weight  
Rear  

  REAR OIL SEALS     

  BENDIX EVERSURE LONGSTROKE 2-DRIVE 
AXLES SPRING PARKING CHAMBERS  

 20  

  BENDIX VERSAJUST AUTOMATIC REAR SLACK 
ADJUSTERS  

   

  SYNTHETIC 75W-90 REAR AXLE LUBE     

Rear Suspension 

  AIRLINER 46,000# REAR SUSPENSION   480  

  AIRLINER HIGH POSITION RIDE HEIGHT     

  WELDED AXLE SEATS SUPPLIED ON REAR 
AXLE  

 40  

  51 INCH AXLE SPACING     

  SINGLE AIR REAR SUSPENSION LEVELING 
VALVE  

   

  TRANSVERSE CONTROL RODS     

  REAR SHOCK ABSORBERS - TWO AXLES 
(TANDEM) (AIR RIDE SUSPENSION)  

   

Brake System 

  AIR BRAKE PACKAGE     

  WABCO 4S/4M ABS     

  REINFORCED NYLON, FABRIC BRAID AND WIRE 
BRAID CHASSIS AIR LINES  

   

  FIBER BRAID PARKING BRAKE HOSE     

  STANDARD BRAKE SYSTEM VALVES     

  STANDARD AIR SYSTEM PRESSURE 
PROTECTION SYSTEM  

   

  STD U.S. FRONT BRAKE VALVE     

  RELAY VALVE WITH 5-8 PSI CRACK PRESSURE, 
NO REAR PROPORTIONING VALVE  

   

  BW AD-9SI BRAKE LINE AIR DRYER WITH 
HEATER  

   

  AIR DRYER MOUNTED UNDER HOOD     

  STEEL AIR TANKS MOUNTED BELOW FRAME 
RAILS  

5 5  

  CLEAR FRAME RAILS FROM BACK OF CAB TO 
FRONT REAR SUSPENSION BRACKET, BOTH 
RAILS OUTBOARD  

   

  PULL CABLE ON WET TANK, PETCOCK DRAIN 
VALVES ON ALL OTHER AIR TANKS  

   

Trailer Connections 

  UPGRADED CHASSIS MULTIPLEXING UNIT     

  UPGRADED BULKHEAD MULTIPLEXING UNIT     

92

12.



Prepared for:                                                                                                                                       
Mark Watje                                                                                                                                       
CURBTENDER INC                                                                                                                                       
701 Performance Dr                                                                                                                                       
Cedar Falls, IA  50613                                                                                                                                       
Phone: 319-266-1721                                                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                       

                                                                                                                                   

KY3558-59 
25Y PHOENIX CHASSIS 

Prepared by: 
Jeramiah Javens 

Phone: 507-929-0660 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Application Version 10.1.202                                                                                                                                       
Data Version PRL-19M.004                                                                                                                                       
25Y Phoenix Stock                                                                                                                                       
   

 

05/29/2019 10:28 AM 
 

Page 10 of 16 

 

 
 

                                                                                          
Description  

Weight 
Front 

Weight  
Rear  

Wheelbase & Frame 

  5700MM (224 INCH) WHEELBASE     

  7/16X3-9/16X11-1/8 INCH STEEL FRAME 
(11.11MMX282.6MM/0.437X11.13 INCH) 120KSI  

370 290  

  1600MM (63 INCH) REAR FRAME OVERHANG     

  FRAME OVERHANG RANGE: 61 INCH TO 70 
INCH  

   

  CALC'D BACK OF CAB TO REAR SUSP C/L (CA) :  
158.85 in 

   

  CALCULATED EFFECTIVE BACK OF CAB TO 
REAR SUSPENSION C/L (CA) :  155.85 in 

   

  CALC'D FRAME LENGTH - OVERALL :  316.78     

  CALCULATED FRAME SPACE LH SIDE :  78.31 in    

  CALCULATED FRAME SPACE RH SIDE :  204.68 
in 

   

  CALC'D SPACE AVAILABLE FOR DECKPLATE :  
158.45 in 

   

  SQUARE END OF FRAME     

  FRONT CLOSING CROSSMEMBER     

  LIGHTWEIGHT HEAVY DUTY ALUMINUM ENGINE 
CROSSMEMBER  

-12   

  STANDARD CROSSMEMBER BACK OF 
TRANSMISSION  

   

  STANDARD MIDSHIP #1 CROSSMEMBER(S)     

  STANDARD REARMOST CROSSMEMBER     

  HEAVY DUTY SUSPENSION CROSSMEMBER   30  

Chassis Equipment 

  THREE-PIECE 14 INCH PAINTED STEEL 
BUMPER WITH COLLAPSIBLE ENDS  

30   

  FRONT TOW HOOKS - FRAME MOUNTED  15   

  BUMPER MOUNTING FOR SINGLE LICENSE 
PLATE  

   

  FENDER AND FRONT OF HOOD MOUNTED 
FRONT MUDFLAPS  

   

  GRADE 8 THREADED HEX HEADED FRAME 
FASTENERS  

   

Fuel Tanks 

  60 GALLON/227 LITER ALUMINUM FUEL TANK - 
LH  

20 5  

  23 INCH DIAMETER FUEL TANK(S)     

  PLAIN ALUMINUM/PAINTED STEEL 
FUEL/HYDRAULIC TANK(S) WITH PAINTED 
BANDS  

   

93

12.



Prepared for:                                                                                                                                       
Mark Watje                                                                                                                                       
CURBTENDER INC                                                                                                                                       
701 Performance Dr                                                                                                                                       
Cedar Falls, IA  50613                                                                                                                                       
Phone: 319-266-1721                                                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                       

                                                                                                                                   

KY3558-59 
25Y PHOENIX CHASSIS 

Prepared by: 
Jeramiah Javens 

Phone: 507-929-0660 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Application Version 10.1.202                                                                                                                                       
Data Version PRL-19M.004                                                                                                                                       
25Y Phoenix Stock                                                                                                                                       
   

 

05/29/2019 10:28 AM 
 

Page 11 of 16 

 

 
 

                                                                                          
Description  

Weight 
Front 

Weight  
Rear  

  FUEL TANK(S) FORWARD     

  PLAIN STEP FINISH     

  FUEL TANK CAP(S)     

  DETROIT FUEL/WATER SEPARATOR WITH 
WATER IN FUEL SENSOR AND 12 VOLT 
PREHEATER  

-5   

  EQUIFLO INBOARD FUEL SYSTEM     

  NO NATURAL GAS VEHICLE FUEL TANK VENT 
LINE/STACK  

   

  HIGH TEMPERATURE REINFORCED NYLON 
FUEL LINE  

   

Tires 

  MICHELIN X WORKS Z 315/80R22.5 20 PLY 
RADIAL FRONT TIRES  

100   

  HANKOOK DL11 11R22.5 14 PLY RADIAL REAR 
TIRES  

 120  

Hubs 

  CONMET PRESET PLUS PREMIUM IRON FRONT 
HUBS  

   

  CONMET PRESET PLUS PREMIUM IRON REAR 
HUBS  

   

Wheels 

  ACCURIDE 29039 22.5X9.00 10-HUB PILOT 5.25 
INSET 5-HAND STEEL DISC FRONT WHEELS  

66   

  MAXION WHEELS 90262 22.5X8.25 10-HUB PILOT 
5-HAND STEEL DISC REAR WHEELS  

 72  

  FRONT WHEEL MOUNTING NUTS     

  REAR WHEEL MOUNTING NUTS     

  WHEEL STUDS FOR CUSTOMER INSTALLED 
HUB PILOTED DUALED ALUMINUM WHEELS, 
ALL  

   

Cab Exterior 

  106 INCH BBC FLAT ROOF ALUMINUM 
CONVENTIONAL CAB  

   

  AIR CAB MOUNTING     

  NONREMOVABLE BUGSCREEN MOUNTED 
BEHIND GRILLE  

   

  2-1/2 INCH FENDER EXTENSIONS  10   

  LH AND RH GRAB HANDLES     

  HOOD MOUNTED CHROMED PLASTIC GRILLE     

  CHROME HOOD MOUNTED AIR INTAKE GRILLE     

  FIBERGLASS HOOD     

94

12.



Prepared for:                                                                                                                                       
Mark Watje                                                                                                                                       
CURBTENDER INC                                                                                                                                       
701 Performance Dr                                                                                                                                       
Cedar Falls, IA  50613                                                                                                                                       
Phone: 319-266-1721                                                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                       

                                                                                                                                   

KY3558-59 
25Y PHOENIX CHASSIS 

Prepared by: 
Jeramiah Javens 

Phone: 507-929-0660 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Application Version 10.1.202                                                                                                                                       
Data Version PRL-19M.004                                                                                                                                       
25Y Phoenix Stock                                                                                                                                       
   

 

05/29/2019 10:28 AM 
 

Page 12 of 16 

 

 
 

                                                                                          
Description  

Weight 
Front 

Weight  
Rear  

  DUAL 14 INCH ROUND POLISHED AIR HORNS  8   

  SINGLE ELECTRIC HORN     

  DUAL HORN SHIELDS     

  ALL UNIT(S) KEYED ALIKE WITH CUSTOMER 
SPECIFIED KEY NUMBER FT1010  

   

  REAR LICENSE PLATE MOUNT END OF FRAME     

  INTEGRAL HEADLIGHT/MARKER ASSEMBLY 
WITH CHROME BEZEL  

   

  LED AERODYNAMIC MARKER LIGHTS     

  DAYTIME RUNNING LIGHTS     

  OMIT STOP/TAIL/BACKUP LIGHTS AND PROVIDE 
WIRING WITH SEPARATE STOP/TURN WIRES 
TO 4 FEET BEYOND END OF FRAME  

 -5  

  STANDARD FRONT TURN SIGNAL LAMPS     

  DUAL WEST COAST MOLDED-IN COLOR 
HEATED MIRRORS  

   

  DOOR MOUNTED MIRRORS     

  102 INCH EQUIPMENT WIDTH     

  LH AND RH 8 INCH MOLDED-IN COLOR CONVEX 
MIRRORS M0UNTED UNDER PRIMARY 
MIRRORS  

   

  STANDARD SIDE/REAR REFLECTORS     

  RH AFTERTREATMENT SYSTEM CAB ACCESS 
WITH POLISHED DIAMOND PLATE COVER  

   

  63X14 INCH TINTED REAR WINDOW     

  TINTED DOOR GLASS LH AND RH WITH TINTED 
NON-OPERATING WING WINDOWS  

   

  MANUAL DOOR WINDOW REGULATORS     

  TINTED WINDSHIELD     

  2 GALLON WINDSHIELD WASHER RESERVOIR 
WITH FLUID LEVEL INDICATOR, FRAME 
MOUNTED  

   

  WHITE WINTERFRONT  2   

Cab Interior 

  OPAL GRAY VINYL INTERIOR     

  MOLDED PLASTIC DOOR PANEL WITHOUT 
VINYL INSERT WITH ALUMINUM KICKPLATE 
LOWER DOOR  

   

  MOLDED PLASTIC DOOR PANEL WITHOUT 
VINYL INSERT WITH ALUMINUM KICKPLATE 
LOWER DOOR  

   

  BLACK MATS WITH SINGLE INSULATION     

  DASH MOUNTED ASH TRAYS AND LIGHTER     

95

12.



Prepared for:                                                                                                                                       
Mark Watje                                                                                                                                       
CURBTENDER INC                                                                                                                                       
701 Performance Dr                                                                                                                                       
Cedar Falls, IA  50613                                                                                                                                       
Phone: 319-266-1721                                                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                       

                                                                                                                                   

KY3558-59 
25Y PHOENIX CHASSIS 

Prepared by: 
Jeramiah Javens 

Phone: 507-929-0660 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Application Version 10.1.202                                                                                                                                       
Data Version PRL-19M.004                                                                                                                                       
25Y Phoenix Stock                                                                                                                                       
   

 

05/29/2019 10:28 AM 
 

Page 13 of 16 

 

 
 

                                                                                          
Description  

Weight 
Front 

Weight  
Rear  

  FORWARD ROOF MOUNTED CONSOLE WITH 
UPPER STORAGE COMPARTMENTS AND 
ADDITIONAL CENTER COMPARTMENT 
WITHOUT NETTING  

   

  IN DASH STORAGE BIN     

  (2) CUP HOLDERS LH AND RH DASH     

  GRAY/CHARCOAL FLAT DASH     

  SMART SWITCH EXPANSION MODULE     

  2-1/2 LB. FIRE EXTINGUISHER  5   

  HEATER, DEFROSTER AND AIR CONDITIONER     

  STANDARD HVAC DUCTING     

  MAIN HVAC CONTROLS WITH RECIRCULATION 
SWITCH  

   

  STANDARD HEATER PLUMBING     

  VALEO HEAVY DUTY A/C REFRIGERANT 
COMPRESSOR  

   

  BINARY CONTROL, R-134A     

  STANDARD INSULATION     

  SOLID-STATE CIRCUIT PROTECTION AND 
FUSES  

   

  12V NEGATIVE GROUND ELECTRICAL SYSTEM     

  DOME DOOR ACTIVATED LH AND RH, DUAL 
READING LIGHTS, FORWARD CAB ROOF  

   

  CAB DOOR LATCHES WITH MANUAL DOOR 
LOCKS  

   

  (1) 12 VOLT POWER SUPPLY IN DASH     

  TRIANGULAR REFLECTORS WITHOUT FLARES  10   

  BASIC HIGH BACK AIR SUSPENSION DRIVER 
SEAT WITH MECHANICAL LUMBAR AND 
INTEGRATED CUSHION EXTENSION  

30   

  2 MAN TOOL BOX MID BACK NON SUSPENSION 
PASSENGER SEAT  

20   

  DUAL DRIVER SEAT ARMRESTS, NO 
PASSENGER SEAT ARMRESTS  

4   

  LH AND RH INTEGRAL DOOR PANEL ARMRESTS     

  BLACK MORDURA CLOTH DRIVER SEAT COVER     

  BLACK MORDURA CLOTH PASSENGER SEAT 
COVER  

   

  BLACK SEAT BELTS     

  ADJUSTABLE TILT AND TELESCOPING 
STEERING COLUMN  

10   

  4-SPOKE 18 INCH (450MM) STEERING WHEEL     

  DRIVER AND PASSENGER INTERIOR SUN 
VISORS  

   

96

12.



Prepared for:                                                                                                                                       
Mark Watje                                                                                                                                       
CURBTENDER INC                                                                                                                                       
701 Performance Dr                                                                                                                                       
Cedar Falls, IA  50613                                                                                                                                       
Phone: 319-266-1721                                                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                       

                                                                                                                                   

KY3558-59 
25Y PHOENIX CHASSIS 

Prepared by: 
Jeramiah Javens 

Phone: 507-929-0660 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Application Version 10.1.202                                                                                                                                       
Data Version PRL-19M.004                                                                                                                                       
25Y Phoenix Stock                                                                                                                                       
   

 

05/29/2019 10:28 AM 
 

Page 14 of 16 

 

 
 

                                                                                          
Description  

Weight 
Front 

Weight  
Rear  

Instruments & Controls 

  GRAY DRIVER INSTRUMENT PANEL     

  GRAY CENTER INSTRUMENT PANEL     

  ENGINE REMOTE INTERFACE WITHOUT 
INTERLOCKS  

   

  BLACK GAUGE BEZELS     

  LOW AIR PRESSURE INDICATOR LIGHT AND 
AUDIBLE ALARM  

   

  2 INCH PRIMARY AND SECONDARY AIR 
PRESSURE GAUGES  

   

  INTAKE MOUNTED AIR RESTRICTION 
INDICATOR WITHOUT GRADUATIONS  

   

  ELECTRONIC CRUISE CONTROL WITH 
SWITCHES IN LH SWITCH PANEL  

   

  KEY OPERATED IGNITION SWITCH AND 
INTEGRAL START POSITION; 4 POSITION 
OFF/RUN/START/ACCESSORY  

   

  ICU3S, 132X48 DISPLAY WITH DIAGNOSTICS, 28 
LED WARNING LAMPS AND DATA LINKED  

   

  HEAVY DUTY ONBOARD DIAGNOSTICS 
INTERFACE CONNECTOR LOCATED BELOW LH 
DASH  

   

  2 INCH ELECTRIC FUEL GAUGE     

  ENGINE REMOTE INTERFACE FOR REMOTE 
THROTTLE  

   

  ENGINE REMOTE INTERFACE CONNECTOR AT 
BACK OF CAB  

   

  ELECTRICAL ENGINE COOLANT TEMPERATURE 
GAUGE  

   

  2 INCH TRANSMISSION OIL TEMPERATURE 
GAUGE  

   

  ENGINE AND TRIP HOUR METERS INTEGRAL 
WITHIN DRIVER DISPLAY  

   

  CUSTOMER FURNISHED AND INSTALLED PTO 
CONTROLS  

   

  ELECTRIC ENGINE OIL PRESSURE GAUGE     

  AM/FM/WB WORLD TUNER RADIO WITH 
AUXILIARY INPUT, J1939  

10   

  DASH MOUNTED RADIO     

  (2) RADIO SPEAKERS IN CAB     

  AM/FM ANTENNA MOUNTED ON FORWARD LH 
ROOF  

   

  ELECTRONIC MPH SPEEDOMETER WITH 
SECONDARY KPH SCALE, WITHOUT 
ODOMETER  

   

97

12.



Prepared for:                                                                                                                                       
Mark Watje                                                                                                                                       
CURBTENDER INC                                                                                                                                       
701 Performance Dr                                                                                                                                       
Cedar Falls, IA  50613                                                                                                                                       
Phone: 319-266-1721                                                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                       

                                                                                                                                   

KY3558-59 
25Y PHOENIX CHASSIS 

Prepared by: 
Jeramiah Javens 

Phone: 507-929-0660 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Application Version 10.1.202                                                                                                                                       
Data Version PRL-19M.004                                                                                                                                       
25Y Phoenix Stock                                                                                                                                       
   

 

05/29/2019 10:28 AM 
 

Page 15 of 16 

 

 
 

                                                                                          
Description  

Weight 
Front 

Weight  
Rear  

  STANDARD VEHICLE SPEED SENSOR     

  ELECTRONIC 3000 RPM TACHOMETER     

  IGNITION SWITCH CONTROLLED ENGINE STOP     

  DIGITAL VOLTAGE DISPLAY INTEGRAL WITH 
DRIVER DISPLAY  

   

  SINGLE ELECTRIC WINDSHIELD WIPER MOTOR 
WITH DELAY  

   

  MARKER LIGHT SWITCH INTEGRAL WITH 
HEADLIGHT SWITCH  

   

  ONE VALVE PARKING BRAKE SYSTEM WITH 
DASH VALVE CONTROL AUTONEUTRAL AND 
WARNING INDICATOR  

   

  SELF CANCELING TURN SIGNAL SWITCH WITH 
DIMMER, WASHER/WIPER AND HAZARD IN 
HANDLE  

   

  INTEGRAL ELECTRONIC TURN SIGNAL 
FLASHER WITH HAZARD LAMPS OVERRIDING 
STOP LAMPS  

   

Design 

  PAINT: ONE SOLID COLOR     

Color 

  CAB COLOR A: L0006EB WHITE ELITE BC      

  BLACK, HIGH SOLIDS POLYURETHANE CHASSIS 
PAINT  

   

  POWDER WHITE (N0006EA) FRONT 
WHEELS/RIMS (PKWHT21, TKWHT21, W, TW)  

   

  POWDER WHITE (N0006EA) REAR 
WHEELS/RIMS (PKWHT21, TKWHT21, W, TW)  

   

  BUMPER PAINT: FP24812 ARGENT SILVER 
DUPONT FLEX  

   

  STANDARD E COAT/UNDERCOATING     

Certification / Compliance 

  U.S. FMVSS CERTIFICATION, EXCEPT SALES 
CABS AND GLIDER KITS  

   

Secondary Factory Options 

  CORPORATE PDI CENTER IN-SERVICE ONLY     

Raw Performance Data 

  CALC'D FRAME LENGTH - OVERALL :  316.78     

  CALCULATED EFFECTIVE BACK OF CAB TO 
REAR SUSPENSION C/L (CA) :  155.85 in 

   

  CALC'D SPACE AVAILABLE FOR DECKPLATE :  
158.45 in 

   

 

98

12.



Prepared for:                                                                                                                                       
Mark Watje                                                                                                                                       
CURBTENDER INC                                                                                                                                       
701 Performance Dr                                                                                                                                       
Cedar Falls, IA  50613                                                                                                                                       
Phone: 319-266-1721                                                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                       

                                                                                                                                   

KY3558-59 
25Y PHOENIX CHASSIS 

Prepared by: 
Jeramiah Javens 

Phone: 507-929-0660 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Application Version 10.1.202                                                                                                                                       
Data Version PRL-19M.004                                                                                                                                       
25Y Phoenix Stock                                                                                                                                       
   

 

05/29/2019 10:28 AM 
 

Page 16 of 16 

 

T O T A L  V E H I C L E  S U M M A R Y  

 

 

 

Weight Summary 

 Weight  

Front 

Weight  

Rear 

Total  

Weight 

Factory Weight+ 7936 lbs 7315 lbs 15251 lbs 

    

            Total Weight+ 7936 lbs 7315 lbs 15251 lbs 

 

 

 

 

 

(+) Weights shown are estimates only. 

If weight is critical, contact Customer Application Engineering. 

 

 

99

12.



100

12.



101

12.



102

12.



103

12.



PHOENIX

104

12.



www.curbtender.com

PHOENIX

Body Specifications 25 CU. YD. 32 CU. YD. 
A: LENGTH OF BODY 280” 324” 
B: HEIGHT OF BODY ABOVE CHASSIS 95” 95” 
C: BODY WIDTH 96” 96” 
D: HOPPER OPENING WIDTH 78” 78” 
E: HOPPER OPENING HEIGHT 68” 68” 
F: LOADING SILL ABOVE CHASSIS FRAME 4.6” 4.6” 
G: HEIGHT OF TAILGATE ABOVE CHASSIS FRAME (TAILGATE RAISED) 182” 182” 
  HOPPER CAPACITY 2.8 CU. YD. 2.8 CU. YD. 
  HOPPER CAPACITY W/CLD 3.3 CU. YD. 3.3 CU. YD. 
  DYNAMIC HOPPER CAPACITY (CU. Y.D ./Min.) 6.5 CU. YD. 6.5 CU. YD. 
  APPROX. BODY WEIGHT 15,670 LBS 17,980 LBS   

Minimum Chassis Requirements    
  MINIMUM GVWR TANDEM 60,000 LBS 66,000 LBS 
  FRONT AXLE 14,000 LBS 20,000 LBS 
  REAR AXLE 46,000 LBS 46,000 LBS 
CT CAB TO TANDEM 156” 200” 
CF MIN. TO END OF FRAME 205” 249” 
  REQUIRED FRAME HEIGHT 39” TO 43” 39” TO 43” 

Body Construction
• Roof: 10 gauge GR80
• Sides: 10 gauge GR80
• Floor: 3/16” GR100
• Trough Floor: 1/4” GR100
• Ejection Panel: 7 gauge GR50
• Sweep Face: 1/4” AR400
• Tailgate Upper: 11 gauge GR50
• Tailgate Lower: 3/16” GR100
• Tailgate Floor: 1/4” AR400 

Features
• High strength chiseled body side wall design
• High Compaction Rating
• Reinforced for heavy duty commercial  
 waste collection
• Split-tailgate design for ultimate service  
 access to packer area

• Auto back-pack
• Engine accelerator
• Reservoir sight gauge
• Chrome cylinder rods
• 30” x 34” access door (street side)
• Driver alert buzzer (curbside)
• LED ANSI/DOT lighting & Work Lights
• Rear camera system
• Pack cycle time: 24-28 seconds
• 12 month warranty

Hydraulics
• Oil Reservoir: 50 gal. 
• Oil Flow w/ Standard Pump: 36 GPM
• Operating Pressure: 2,500 PSI
• Hose Burst Ratio: 4 to 1
• Return Filter: 10 micron
• Pack Cylinders: 5”
• Sweep Cylinders: 5”

• Eject Cylinders
• 25 cu. yd. - 5 ¼” 2 stage
• 32 cu. yd. - 6” 3 stage 
• Tailgate Lift Cylinders: 3 1/2”

Optional Features
• Container roll bar with lip-and-latch
• 12,000 lbs. reeving winch
• 8,000 lbs. & 12,000 lbs. overhead drum winch
• Single or dual cart tipper
• Cart tipper tap-in-kits
• Arlock Container Lifting Device

701 PERFORMANCE DRIVE, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613
PHONE: 319.266.1721, FAX: 319.266.8207

© 2019 Curbtender Inc., All Rights Reserved. Specifications subject to change.

105

12.



 

August 23, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Ordinance 2019-05 Business Registration 

Summary:   

Continued item from July 23rd and August 13th Regular meeting. Third Read. 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

106

13.



 

Ordinance 2019-05 Business Registration – 7/23/19 

ORDINANCE NO. 2019-05 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN OF 

PAONIA, COLORADO, ADDING CHAPTER 6, ARTICLE 5 TO THE 

TOWN OF PAONIA MUNICIPAL CODE 

 

RECITALS 

 

WHEREAS, the Town of Paonia (the “Town”), in the County of Delta and State of Colorado, is 

a municipal corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of Colorado; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of the Town had determined that the levy of an annual 

business registration fee on all persons doing business in the Town will promote the health safety 

and general welfare of the Paonia community.    

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 

TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO, AS FOLLOWS:  

 

Section 1.  Legislative Findings.   

The recitals to this Ordinance are adopted as findings of the Board of Trustees in support 

of the enactment of this Ordinance.  

 

Section 2.  Amendment of Town Code.  

Chapter 6, Article 5 of the Town Code is added as follows:  

 

Sec. 6-5-1 Purpose. 

     

The purpose of this article shall be to require the registering and regulation of business 

activities, occupations and enterprises conducted within the Town and provide the Town with 

necessary information relating to businesses and professions operating within the Town in order 

to protect the health, welfare and safety of its inhabitants.  It is the express intent and purpose of 

the business registration fee to cover the cost of processing such registration.  

 

Sec. 6-5-2 Business Registration Required.   

 

It shall be unlawful for any person, firm, association, partnership or corporation either as 

a principal, agent, clerk, employee or otherwise to commence or carry on any kind of business, 

profession or occupation without first having registered with the Town. 

 

Sec. 6-5-3 Application for Registration. 

 

(a) Any person, firm, association, partnership or corporation now engaged in any 

business, profession or occupation within the corporate limits of the Town shall on or before 

January 1, 2020, and annually thereafter, so long as such person, firm, association, partnership 

or corporation comes within the purview of this Article 5, supply the information necessary to 

register the business with the Town Clerk.  An application for such registration shall be made to 

107

13.



 

Ordinance 2019-05 Business Registration – 7/23/19 

the Town Clerk and in the form provided by the Town and accompanied by the appropriate fee 

as set by resolution. 

 

(b)  Upon receipt of a complete application for business registration, the Town Clerk 

will issue a registration certificate within fifteen (15) days of receipt.   

 

Sec.  6-5-4 Buildings, Premises to Comply with Town Requirements Prior to 

Issuance of a Business Registration Certificate.  

 

The Town Clerk shall not issue a business registration certificate for the conduct of any 

business, and no permit shall be issued for anything, or act, if the premises and building to be used 

for the purpose do not fully comply with the requirements of the Town. No such business 

registration certificate or permit shall be issued for the conduct of any business or performance of 

any act which would involve a violation of the zoning provisions of the Town. 

 

Sec.  6-5-5 Exemptions. 

 

All businesses located or performed within the Town shall be subject to this business 

registration fee as levied under this Article, except as follows: 

 

(a)  Day care centers are hereby exempted from the terms of this Article. 

 

(b)  Schools are hereby exempted from the terms of this Article. 

 

(c) Nonprofit Colorado corporations are hereby exempted from the payment of a fee 

but shall be required to register. 

 

Sec. 6-5-6 Term of Registration Certificate. 

 

All registration certificates shall cover a period of one (1) year beginning January 1 and 

ending December 31 of that year.  No rebate or credit shall be given for registration certificate 

used or issued for fractions or portions of a year; nor shall such registration certificate be 

assignable or transferable as to person, but it may be transferred as to place at the discretion of 

the Town Clerk.   Business registrations shall be renewed annually during the month of 

December.  

 

Sec. 6-5-7 Notification for Renewal. 

 

The Town Clerk shall be charged with the administration and collection of all registration 

fees authorized under this Article. It shall be his or her duty to notify every known business, 

trade, occupation and professional enterprise in operation within the Town of the fact that such 

registration fee is due prior to January 1 of each year. Said notification shall include full 

instructions as to procedures for remittance of the registration fee due, and penalties provided. 

Lack of receipt of such notification in any year shall not relieve any person engaging in business 

within the Town from the liability of paying such registration fee and complying with all other 

requirements of this Article. 

108

13.



 

Ordinance 2019-05 Business Registration – 7/23/19 

 

Sec. 6-5-8 Delinquent Charges. 

 

Any person failing to pay any registration fee levied under this Article by January 1 shall 

thereafter be deemed delinquent and the registration deemed expired. To renew their registration 

certificate, the businesses registering shall be subject to a delinquent fee in an amount to be 

approved by the Town Board of Trustees for each full month for which said fee is delinquent, 

assessed on the first day of the month, in addition to any other penalty which may be imposed 

for the violation of this Code. 

 

Sec. 6-5-9. Issuance of Registration Certificate. 

 

Upon receipt of a registration fee payment due under this Article, the Town Clerk shall 

issue a certificate which shall indicate that said registration fee has been paid for the specified 

year. 

 

Sec. 6-5-10.   Display of Registration Certificate. 

 

Each registration certificate issued under this Article shall at all times while in force be 

displayed in a conspicuous place in the place of business and shall be removed after expiration 

thereof.   

 

Section 3.  Severability.   

 

If any provision, clause, sentence or paragraph of this Ordinance or the application thereof 

to any person or circumstance shall be held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the other 

provisions of this Ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, 

and, to this end, the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable.  

 

Section 4.  Repeal of Prior Ordinances.  

 

All other ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.  

 

Section 5.  Ordinance Effect. 
 

Existing ordinances or parts of ordinances covering the same matters as embraced in this 

Ordinance are hereby repealed and any and all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with 

the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed, provided, however, that the repeal of any 

ordinance or parts of ordinances of the Town shall not revive any other section of any ordinance 

or ordinances hereto before repealed or superseded and further provided that this repeal shall not 

affect or prevent the prosecution or punishment of any person for any act done or committed in 

violation of any ordinance hereby repealed prior to the taking effect of this Ordinance.  

 

Section 6.  Effective Date. 

 

 This Ordinance shall take effect thirty days after adoption.     

109

13.



 

Ordinance 2019-05 Business Registration – 7/23/19 

 

INTRODUCED, READ AND REFERRED to public hearing before the Board of 

Trustees of the Town of Paonia, Colorado, on the 9th day of July, 2019. 

 

TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO, A 

MUNICIPAL CORPORATION 
 

      By:________________________________ 

       CHARLES STEWART, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

J. CORINNE FERGUSON, Town Clerk 

 

HEARD AND FINALLY ADOPTED by the Board of Trustees of the Town of Paonia, 

Colorado, this ______ day of ___________, 2019. 

 

TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO, A 

MUNICIPAL CORPORATION 

 

      By:________________________________ 

      CHARLES STEWART, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 

J. CORINNE FERGUSON, Town Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

110

13.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPLICATION FOR 2020 BUSINESS REGISTRATION 

and/or ANNUAL RENEWAL 
 

NOTE: Application will be rejected unless all questions are fully answered, and proper remittance is attached. The fee is $__.00 

per year per business. RENEWAL: If NO changes, check box □, fill in licensee and Trade Name sections, sign and date below, 

and return with renewal fee of $__.00 SUGGESTED FEES: $50/$25 OR $35/$25 – BOARD TO PROVIDE DIRECTION 

FOR AMENDED FEE SCHEDULE 
Ownership Information (please print or type): 

Type of Ownership: 

Please indicate by checking the 

appropriate box to the right. 

Individual 

□ 
Partnership 

□ 
Corporation 

□ 
LLC 

□ 
Association/Club 

□ 
Other    

□ 
 

Licensee Information (please print or type): 

Full Legal Name of Licensee  

Trade Name (DBA)  

Physical Address of Business  

City  

State  

Zip Code  

Mailing Address  

City  

State  

Zip Code  

Contact Person  

Title  

Telephone  

Fax  

E-Mail  

Contact Person After Hours 

(include Telephone number) 

 

 
Business Information (please print or type): 

Colorado State Sales Tax Number  

Date you began making sales in Paonia, CO  

Principal product or service rendered in Paonia, CO  

 

Authorized signature  Date: 

Printed Name  

 

214 Grand Avenue • P.O. Box 460 • Paonia, CO 81428-0460  

(970) 527-4101 • Fax (970) 527-4102 

www.TownofPaonia.com 
111

13.



 

August 22, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

CHC – North Fork Mancos Master Development Plan – Letter of Protest 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

112

14.



TOWN OF PAONIA 
REQUEST TO BE PLACED ON AGENDA 

PO Box 460 
Paonia, CO  81428 

970/527-4101 
paonia@townofpaonia,com 

 
Here are things you need to know: 

▪ You must contact the Town Administrator or Town Clerk prior to coming to the Board.  Quite often the issue 
can be resolved by staff action.  

▪ No charges or complaints against individual employees should be made.  Such charges or complaints should be 
sent to the employee’s Department Head in writing with your signature. 

▪ Remarks that discriminate against anyone or adversely reflect upon the race, color, ancestry, religious creed, 
national origin, political affiliation, disability, sex, or marital status of any person are out of order and may end 
the speaker’s privilege to address the Board. 

▪ Defamatory, abusive remarks or profanity are out of order and will not be tolerated. 
 

Please complete the following information and return this form no later than the Monday, a week prior to the Board 
meeting to the above address or bring it to the Town Hall at 214 Grand Avenue. 

Office hours are Monday through Friday, 8:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. 
Regular Board meetings are scheduled for the second and fourth Tuesdays of each month. 

 

 
Name of person making presentation: _____________________________________________ 
 
Organization, if speaking on behalf of a group:                                                                           _ 
 
Is this a request for Board action?  Yes No 
 
Please provide a summary of your comments: 
 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
     
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
What staff member have you spoken to about this?  Please summarize your discussion: 
 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Contact information: 
 
Name:              ___________________________________ 
Physical Address: ___________________________________ 
Mailing Address:  ___________________________________ 
 
E-mail:    ___________________________________ 
Daytime Phone: ___________________________________ 
 
 

Office Use Only: 

Received: 

______________________ 

Approved for Agenda: 

______________________ 

Board Meeting Date: 

______________________ 

Andrew Forkes-Gudmundson

Citizens for a Healthy Community

The BLM and USFS has issues a draft approval of the North Fork Mancos Master Development Plan, and are 

accepting protests/objections through September 30. I do not believe that the decision by BLM or USFS has addressed the

issues the Town of Paonia raised in their previous comments, and I am requesting that the Town consider submitting 

a protest of this decision.

None, as of this submission

Andrew Forkes-Gudmundson
211 Grand Ave, Paonia, CO 81428

PO Box 1283, Paonia, CO 81428

Andrew@chc4you.org
(970) 399-9700

113

14.



 

August 23, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Bart Eller - Paonia Soil Company Use of Existing Access Agreement 

 

Summary:   

Existing documents and materials from Mr. Eller attached. Staff requests the Board approve 

use with Mr. Eller contingent upon Mr. Eller providing written agreement from adjacent 

property owner (Sommer), agreement to upgrade one culvert to be able to support regular 

semi-truck traffic and reimburse the fee to update the Town CDOT Permit.  

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

114

15.



 

 

Barton Eller 
P.O. Box 1681 
Paonia, Colorado 81428 
(970) 270-8037 
bart@paoniasoilco.com 

August 22, 2019 

Town of Paonia 
214 Grand Ave. P.O. Box 460 
Paonia, Colorado 81428 

 

Wired Right Inc., d/b/a Paonia Soil Co., hereinafter referred to as Paonia Soil 
Co. which is currently located just outside The Town of Paonia, has been 
seeking to expand and are under contract on the property at 38784 Marsh Rd. 
that the Town sold to Charles Cech a few years ago. As you may know, Mr. 
Cech passed away recently and we are trying to help his widow get into a 
house as soon as possible.   

 

Paonia Soil Co. employs six full time people, more part time in the summer. We 
make potting soil and other agricultural products and we are a top selling 
product at Paonia Farm and Home Supply and would like to try to stay near 
the Town of Paonia. 

 

The following is a description of planned operations that we submitted to the 
county if we move to Marsh Rd.: 

 

Paonia Soil Co is a wholesale manufacturer and distributor of professional 
grade organic agriculture products. With our proposed expansion we plan to 
expand all of our current operations which include the following: 

1. Composting: PSC utilizes the aerated static pile method of composting 
with blowers rather than turners. This results in a superior microbial 
profile with low odor, noise and energy consumption. The finished 
compost is both packaged for sale and blended with other products for 
use in our soil mixes. Our primary feedstock is chicken litter agricultural 

115

15.



 

 

waste provided by Jack Graff of Delta. We are also in talks with BigB's 
of Hotchkiss about using their apple pulp waste. 

2. The agricultural production of crops: PSC currently raises water-fern 
(Azolla) as a soil amendment. We plan to expand our water-fern 
production as well as raise other crops such as Fava Bean and likely 
Alfalfa. These crops will be milled both for use in our soil blends and 
bagged for sale. 

3. The production of value added soil media planting mixes and custom 
soil amendments for farms. 

4. Wholesale distribution of other supporting agricultural products. 

 

Marsh road is a Delta County road that feeds Highway 133. For some reason it 
has a very tight turn at the top where it enters and leaves the highway. It will 
be adequate for our light vehicle traffic and will be our primary access.  

 

We would like to route our truck traffic which would have difficulty with the 
turn onto Marsh Lane onto the road at 38970 Highway 133 which the town 
uses to access the sewer treatment plant for approximately 600 feet and then 
turn them into the property before the Monitor ditch.  

 

The property has an easement from the town which contains the following 
language "The Access Easement shall be used exclusively for ingress and 
egress for farm equipment and supplies necessary for the operation of 
agricultural operations on the Grantee's Parcel south of the Monitor Ditch for 
crop and livestock production and excluding confined animal operations, 
dairies, feedlots, and commercial animal slaughter and rendering facilities." 
The trucks that Paonia Soil Co. would like to route down the road would all 
contain either farm equipment or agricultural supplies.  

 

Our business is recognized by Delta County as agricultural and the county 
supports our operation at this location. In using this easement Paonia Soil Co. 
would of course comply with the terms of the existing Cech Easement 
Agreement including covering the cost of any additional maintenance caused 
by our trucks if necessary. 

 
116

15.



 

 

The existing CDOT permit currently allows 5 “General Light Industrial 
Wastewater” DVH’s (“Design Vehicle Hour”); plus 1 DVH for “Single Family 
Detached Housing;” and 1 DVH for “Agriculture.” 

CDOT has indicated that they would like to see the permit updated with 
respect to the Agriculture DVH’s allowed that would accommodate Paonia Soil 
Company’s projected use.  Paonia Soil Company estimates that it will use an 
average of 1 truck per day with a maximum of 4 trucks per day.  While the 
existing 1 Agriculture DVH allotment would be adequate for our use, Dan 
Rousen of CDOT requested that we make an application to update the current 
permit for a total of 4 as the DVH for Agriculture (3 DVH additional for 
Agriculture for a total of 10 DVH overall). The formal request of Paonia Soil Co. 
is that an authorized representative of the town sign the permit update 
application (a copy of which has been submitted to the Town Clerk) and, if 
possible, give a short written statement that the Town of Paonia agrees that 
the uses proposed by Paonia Soil Company are qualifying uses under the 
terms of the Cech Easement Agreement. 

We respectfully request the following from the Town of Paonia: 

(1) That the Town provide us with a letter that states that our use as 
described above is considered by the Town as a qualifying use under 
the terms of the May 15, 2017 Grant of Utility and Access Easements 
and Agreement; and 

(2) Cooperation in the submission of the updated application for the 
CDOT access permit to request permission for the three additional 
DVH’s for Agricultural Use as suggested by Mr. Rousen of CDOT.   

I thank you in advance for your efforts in this matter and for helping keep our 
small business in the area. 

 

 

Barton Eller 

President 

Paonia Soil Co.  

 

 

117

15.



118

15.



119

15.



120

15.



121

15.



122

15.



123

15.



124

15.



125

15.



126

15.



127

15.



128

15.



 

August 23, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Delta County - Opportunity Zone Funding Request 

Summary:   

Delta County requests the Town of Paonia provide support and community buy-in regarding 

the Opportunity Zone designation with a $500 - $1,000 contribution. 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

129

16.



 

August 20, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Finance & Personnel 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

130

17.



 

August 20, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Discussion Regarding Hiring of Interim/Permanent Town Administrator 

Summary:   

Discussion regarding the process and procedures for hiring an interim and permanent Town 

Administrator. 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

131

18.



1

Corinne Ferguson

From: Dianne Schevene 
Sent: Thursday, August 22, 2019 5:41 PM
To: Paonia
Subject: Town Manager

Respectfully, 
 
I have a suggestion about replacing our Town Manager who I have heard is on administrative leave. Corinne Ferguson 
has been the most knowledgeable person I have interacted with regarded town codes and information.  If it is possible 
to modify the job requirements so that a person with as much experience as she has with our town government would 
qualify regardless of the level of formal education it could pave the way for a dedicated, local and very capable person to 
fill this role if she would accept.  I think a person from our community is a much better idea, especially when they have 
demonstrated their honesty, integrity and skill in a way that is clear to everyone who has sought help through the town 
office.  
 
Dianne Schevené 
Optimizing Life! 

 
 

132

18.



 

August 23, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Delegation of Town Administrator’s Authority to Town Clerk 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

133

19.



 

August 20, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Public Works-Utilities-Facilities 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

134

20.



 

August 20, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Governmental Affairs & Public Safety 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

135

21.



 

August 20, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Space 2 Create 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

136

22.



 

August 20, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Tree Board 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

137

23.



 

August 20, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Executive Session 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

138

24.



EXECUTIVE SESSION MOTION FORM 
(Note:  2/3 quorum present must vote yes; the session may only occur at a regular or special meeting of the body) 

 

 

I MOVE TO GO INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION: 

 

(if the stated purpose of the executive session is legal advice, do not combine it with any other 

purpose): 

 

 For a conference with the Town attorney for the purpose of receiving legal advice on 

specific legal questions under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(b); 

 

 For the purpose of determining positions relative to matters that may be subject to 

negotiations, developing strategy for negotiations, and/or instructing negotiators, under 

C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(e); 

 

 To discuss the purchase, acquisition, lease, transfer, or sale of real, personal, or other 

property interest under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(a); 

 

 For discussion of a personnel matter under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(f) and not 

involving: any specific employees who have requested discussion of the matter in open 

session; any member of this body or any elected official; the appointment of any person 

to fill an office of this body or of an elected official; or personnel policies that do not 

require the discussion of matters personal to particular employees; 

 

 For discussion of a matter required to be kept confidential by the following federal or 

state law, rule or regulation: __________________ under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(c); 

 

 For discussion of specialized details of security arrangements or investigations under 

C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(d); 

 

 For consideration of documents protected by the mandatory non-disclosure provisions of 

the Open Records Act under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(g); 

 

 Other (specify):______________________________________________ 

 

Specific 

to:____________________________________________________________________for 

identification purposes only. 

139

24.



 

August 20, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Adjournment 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

140

25.


	Top
	. Work Session ASF 1 - Roll Call
	ASF 1 - Roll Call

	2. ASF 5 - Consent Agenda
	ASF 5 - Consent Agenda
	NFVCC SEP_Redacted
	Slow Food SEP_Redacted

	3. ASF 6 - Mayor's Report
	ASF 6 - Mayor&#39;s Report

	4. ASF 7 -Clerk's Report
	ASF 7 -Clerk's Report

	5. ASF 8 -Public Works Report
	ASF 8 -Public Works Report

	6. ASF 9 -Police Report
	ASF 9 -Police Report

	7. ASF 10 -Treasurer's Report
	ASF 10 -Treasurer&#39;s Report
	Account Analysis
	Budget to Actual

	8. USDA Loan Refinance
	USDA Refinance
	USDA REfi Attachments

	9. ASF 11 - Disbursements
	ASF 11 - Disbursements
	Disbursements

	10. Continued Public Hearing - South Clark Avenue
	Public Hearing Additions
	South Clark Avenue Subdivision Plat Map
	South Clark Avenue Packet_Redacted
	SClark Ave Letter_Redacted

	11. Paonia Teen Center Roof Replacement
	ASF - Teen Center Roof
	Est_334_from_Excellent_Home_Repair_31348
	Rocky Mtn. Roofers Estimate
	Est_334_from_Excellent_Home_Repair_31348 (002)
	Clisset Teen Center Roof Estimate

	12. Trash Truck Aquistion
	ASF - Trash Truck
	Trash Truck -Invoice
	Trash Truck Specs
	2nd Trash Truck Quote - 25Y Phoenix Stock KY3558 3559
	2nd Trash Truck Images
	2nd Trash Truck - Phoenix Brochure 05.19

	13. Ordinance 2019-05 Business Registration
	ASF - Ordinance 2019-05 - Business Registration
	2019-05 Business Registration
	Ordinance 2019-05 Application

	14. CHC – NFMMDP Letter of Protest
	ASF - CHC – Letter of Protest
	CHC_NFMMDP Protest

	15. Bart Eller - Paonia Soil Company Use of Existing Access Agreement
	ASF - Eller Use
	Access Agreement - Eller Letter
	Eller Request and Access Agreement

	16. Delta County - Opportunity Zone Funding Request
	ASF - Opportunity Zone

	17. ASF 12 -F&P
	ASF 12 -F&amp;P

	18. ASF - Discussion-Interim-Permanent Town Admin
	ASF - Discussion-Interim-Permanent Town Admin
	Administrator Letter_Redacted

	19. Delegation of Town Administrator’s Authority to Town Clerk
	ASF - Delegation of Town Administrator’s Authority to Town Clerk

	20. ASF 13 -PW-Utilities-Facilities
	ASF 13 -PW-Utilities-Facilities

	21. ASF 14 -Govt Affairs-PS
	ASF 14 -Govt Affairs-PS

	22. ASF 15 -S2C
	ASF 15 -S2C

	23. ASF 16 -Tree Board
	ASF 16 -Tree Board

	24. ASF 18 - Executive Session
	ASF 18 - Executive Session
	Exec SessionMotion

	Bottom

